
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Monday, 18 November 2019. 
 01476 406080

Paul Thomas, Interim Chief Executive
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

    

Tuesday, 26 November 2019 at 10.30 am
Witham Room - South Kesteven House, St. Peter's Hill, 

Grantham. NG31 6PZ

Committee 
Members:

Councillor Chris Benn (Chairman)
Councillor John Cottier (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Ashley Baxter, Councillor Phil Dilks, Councillor Gloria Johnson, Councillor 
Nikki Manterfield and Councillor Mrs Judy Smith

Invited 
Cabinet 

Members

Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Leader of the Council
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, the Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations 

Agenda
1.  Comments from Members of the public

To receive comments or views from members of the public at the Committee’s 
discretion.

2.  Membership
The committee to be notified of any substitute members.

3.  Apologies

4.  Disclosure of Interests
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.

Environment 
Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


5.  Action Notes from the meeting held on 17 September 2019 (Pages 3 - 10)

6.  Updates from the previous meeting

7.  Position Statement on the Intentional Release of Sky (Chinese) Lanterns 
and Balloons
Report of the Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations.

(Pages 11 - 21)

8.  Scrap metal dealers
Report of the Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations.

(Pages 23 - 25)

9.  Grounds Maintenance Update
Update on the commissioned grounds maintenance service, its objectives and 
performance.

(Pages 27 - 29)

10.  Climate Change
Update on outcomes from the recently held Climate Change workshop and the 
first meeting of the Climate Change Action Task and Finish Group.

11.  Textile Banks/Recycling
Discussion item regarding the current provision for textile recycling in South 
Kesteven.

12.  Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy
To seek volunteers for a Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 
workshop. 

13.  Western Power Distribution -  feedback from local investment workshop
Discussion item based on slides shared from the recent WPD workshop 
attended by the Chairman.

14.  Performance Indicators
Introduction to a new agenda item, to consider performance indicators relating 
to the remit of the Committee. 

(Pages 31 - 35)

15.  Work programme
Members to review the Committee’s work programme for 2019/20. 

(Pages 37 - 39)

16.  Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent



1

Meeting of the
Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee
Tuesday, 17 September 2019, 10.00 am

Committee Members present

Councillor Ashley Baxter
Councillor George Chivers
Councillor John Cottier (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Phil Dilks

Councillor Gloria Johnson
Councillor Mrs Judy Smith
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew 
(Chairman)

Cabinet Members

Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations, Councillor Dr Peter Moseley
Cabinet Member for Housing, Councillor Barry Dobson

Other Members present 

Councillor Mrs Jacky Smith

Officers

Interim Chief Executive (Paul Thomas)
Strategic Director, Commercial and Operations (Gary Smith)
Assistant Director, Commercial and Operations (Ian Yates)
Head of Environmental (Anne-Marie Coulthard)
Grounds Maintenance Coordinator (Lynne Lord)
Communications Officer (Chris Prime)
Democratic Officer (Lucy Bonshor)
Democratic Officer (Naomi Page)

10. Apologies

There were no apologies received.

11. Disclosure of Interests

None disclosed.

3

Agenda Item 5



2

12. Action Notes from the meeting held on 18 June 2019 and updates from 
the previous meeting

The action notes of the meeting held on 18 June 2019 were noted. There 
were no updates from the previous meeting.

The Chairman decided to swap the first two items of the meeting to allow the 
Interim Chief Executive to be present for the climate change workshop item.

13. Climate Change informal workshop update

The Strategic Director, Commercial and Operations provided a presentation 
outlining the findings from the climate change workshop. The workshop was 
held on 30 July 2019 and had facilitated the gathering of information relating 
to climate change and explored how the Council could approach the issue and 
make priorities moving forward. 

In the wider context of the Council’s approach to climate change, a report to 
Cabinet had been made on 10 September 2019 recommending that South 
Kesteven District Council declare a climate emergency. Cabinet agreed a 
number of points to recommend to full Council on 26 September 2019, 
including the timescale by which the Council would aim to become net-zero 
carbon, the importance of the Council’s role as a community leader in 
reducing South Kesteven’s carbon footprint, the creation of a ‘Climate Change 
Action’ task and finish group and the allocation of funds from the 2019/20 
budget to allow for the recruitment of a Climate Change Officer. However, 
Cabinet added that the 50k figure mentioned should be clarified as ‘up to’ and 
subject to the agreement of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.

The climate change workshop had been an interesting opportunity to trial new 
ways of using technology to attend meetings, with the main presenter and one 
of the Members using Skype to participate. This highlighted the potential of 
using such technology to allow virtual attendance at future meetings. An 
officer from Lancaster City Council had provided an example of how the issue 
of climate change could be approached. Members were also given an update 
on the Council’s ‘Energy Reduction and Climate Change Action Plan’. This 
had been initially launched in 2012 and Members were informed of the actions 
taken and progress made since that time. 

Key messages from the workshop had included the need to have a clear 
target and the importance of Senior Member and Officer ownership. Also 
noted were the importance of coherent decision making, and having short-
term and long-term goals. An update had been given on the role of technology 
and agile working, indicating that responding to climate change would lead to 
adopting new technologies. There was also an overview of the Council’s use 
of utilities included. It was noted that there would need to be further work 
carried out to ensure that the Council’s baseline usage was fully represented 

4



3

and that a clear understanding of the data included was given. The 
information would be circulated wider once it had been developed to be fully 
representative of the Council’s current usage. An overview of the Council’s 
use of solar panels was also provided at the workshop, with Members being 
given details of the types of panels used and the financial benefits of their use. 
Members had agreed that a further workshop would be held on 28 October 
2019. Councillor Baxter requested that the names of those in attendance at 
the workshop were recorded (Members in attendance at the workshop were 
Councillor Trollope-Bellew, Councillor Baxter, Councillor Dilks and Councillor 
Mrs Judy Smith). He also disagreed with the use of the word ‘informal’ to 
describe the workshop.  

The Interim Chief Executive then presented the draft Terms of Reference for 
the ‘Climate Change Action’ task and finish group. The Terms outlined the 
purpose of the task and finish group and its role in supporting the Council’s 
ambition of reducing the organisation’s carbon footprint by 2030 and 
becoming net-zero carbon by 2050. The group would be used to identify the  
steps needed to work towards these goals in practical terms. 

Members were then given the opportunity to discuss the draft Terms of 
Reference and ask questions:

 One Member expressed that he felt the targets outlined in the Cabinet 
recommendations to Council (as reflected in the ‘purpose and context’ 
section of the draft Terms of Reference) could have been more 
ambitious. During the discussion, it was noted that one of the primary 
objectives of the task and finish group would be establishing a more 
defined trajectory of the Council’s path towards the established targets. 
This would include the collation of data available regarding the 
Council’s existing carbon footprint, as well as external influences 
outside of the Council’s control. This information would then be used to 
ensure that decisions moving forward were data-led as well as 
ambitious. The current central government target was set at net-zero 
emissions by 2050. In aligning the Council’s target with this, it was 
intended that work could be undertaken to reduce the Council’s carbon 
footprint as quickly as possible, whilst also working to a deliverable 
long-term plan. It was also noted that this time frame would allow the 
Council to move in line with industry and commerce, as long-term goals 
would be influenced by the availability of necessary infrastructure.  

 The membership aspect of the task and finish group was discussed. 
Importance was placed on the group including both elected Members 
and Officers, in order for it to be established as a separate approach 
from a formal Committee. 

 Members expressed that it was important that the selection of Officers 
and Members for the task and finish group were made based on their 
ability to provide valuable input on the critical work to be done by the 
group.      

5



4

 It was suggested that one of the Officer places in the task and finish 
group be offered to an external member who may be able to provide 
valuable expertise on the climate change subject. Members noted that 
in addition to this, if Council agreed on the funds to be allocated as 
recommended by Cabinet, there would be additional scope to seek 
external advice. 

 Members also considered inviting guests to the task and finish group 
meetings, in particular those from local authorities who had already 
made in-roads into addressing climate change themselves, in order for 
a sharing of information to take place.

 Members enquired as to the relationship between the Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the task and finish group. It was 
explained that the task and finish group would be focused on fact 
finding and looking at specific actions, whereas the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee would be developing policy to support the ambition 
to deliver and ensure that the Council had the framework in place to 
maintain its stance after the task and finish group had ended. The task 
and finish group would be reporting its initial findings to the Committee 
in Spring 2020. Immediate budget requirements identified would be 
presented in a timely manner in order to feed into 2020/21 budget 
proposals.

Members then voted to agree the recommendations outlined as a result of 
the climate change workshop, with additional points included based on the 
meeting of Cabinet on 10 September 2019 and the present meeting:

Recommendations

 A further climate change workshop be held on 28 October 2019

 The request be reiterated to add ‘climate change’ to the list of 
potential themes for the Gravity Fields Festival

 Recommend to Cabinet that SKDC seeks to reduce single use 
plastic at its organised events from 2020

 That the Council allocate up to £50,000 to enable external 
advice and the recruitment of a Climate Change Officer 

 That the Council contact Lincolnshire County Council to see 
what advice or capacity they may be able to provide in moving 
towards its climate change targets

 That an external appointee from an environmental background 
be invited to become a member of the Interim Chief Executive’s 
Climate Change Action task and finish group 

6



5

14. Gambling Statement of Principles

Members were advised to consider the report of the Cabinet Member for 
Commercial and Operations, along with the draft Statement of Principles. The 
Gambling Act 2005 required that the Council publish a Statement of Principles 
every three years, meaning the current Statement would be due for renewal 
by January 2020. As part of this renewal process, a public consultation had 
been undertaken. Two responses had been received, but no changes to the 
draft Statement were deemed necessary as a result of the responses. As the 
Statement was a statutory requirement and only minor amendments had been 
made, Members agreed to recommend that Cabinet present the Statement to 
Council for adoption.

Recommendation

The Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee recommends to 
Cabinet that the revised South Kesteven District Council Gambling 
Statement of Principles is suitable to be presented to Council for 
adoption

15. Tree Guidelines

Members were advised to consider the report of the Cabinet Member for 
Commercial and Operations. Three documents had been produced 
(appendices 1-3) to create a coherent model to guide how the Council dealt 
with trees, including a ‘Member Tree Notification Protocol’, a ‘Charter for 
Trees, Woods and People’ and ‘Tree Guidelines’. These documents had been 
produced in response to requests for the Council to formulate a clearer, more 
formal stance to its approach to trees and tree management. The Committee 
discussed each of the documents in turn and had the opportunity to ask 
questions or make comments.

South Kesteven District Council Member Tree Notification Protocol

This document had been produced to support the role of Members in their 
Wards, providing them with the relevant information needed to respond to 
their area constituents regarding major tree works. Members were reminded 
that decisions regarding major works to be carried out in respect of trees 
would have been made after receiving a professional report and in the interest 
of public safety. As such, it was recognised that the works themselves would 
be non-negotiable, but the guidance of the document would aid the 
communication of such matters to Members so they were aware and able to 
answer queries from the public. Members noted the importance of having 
such a document. 

7



6

Action point

Some amendments to the document were suggested:

 Points 6, 7 and 8 to include ‘notify ward and Cabinet Member’ 
under the ‘additional proposed’ heading

 The layout to be reconsidered to allow the clear separation of 
points relating to trees falling under the responsibility of the 
Council, and trees outside of Council owned areas  

Members discussed Tree Preservation Orders (TPOs), as mentioned in the 
protocol document. It was considered that further information could be 
collected regarding how many TPOs there were currently in the Council’s 
area, and where the corresponding trees were situated. Members asked how 
a TPO could be attained. Officers advised that the Planning section was 
responsible for keeping information regarding TPOs. Members suggested that 
an officer from Planning could be invited to a future meeting to provide further 
information on the subject.

Action point

 An officer from Planning to be invited to a future Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting to provide further 
information regarding Tree Protection Orders

Charter for Trees, Woods and People

Members were advised that this document had been produced with the 
support of the Woodland Trust, who had helped the Council to produce the 
Charter as an adaptation of their own Tree Charter, acknowledging the 
requirement for the Council to balance its positive commitment to trees with its 
wider obligations as a public sector organisation. Members welcomed the 
Charter for Trees, Woods and People, considering that the Council should 
have a proactive approach to trees and tree cover. 

Recommendation

The Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee recommends to 
Cabinet to propose that Council endorses the draft ‘Local Government 
Charter for Trees, Woods and People: Principles’

Tree Guidelines for the Management of Trees within South Kesteven District

Members expressed that the Tree Guidelines document complemented other 
work currently being progressed by the Council, supporting its overall aim to 
be deliberate in its approach to climate change. During discussion, Members 
considered the national challenge of increasing tree cover in order to support 

8



7

climate objectives and noted the importance of replanting where possible after 
major tree works had been undertaken, as well as ensuring that developers 
followed through on their tree planting objectives as outlined in planning 
conditions. Further to the Council’s current practice of replanting when 
possible in its open spaces when trees were felled, Members suggested that 
this practice could be developed into policy and potentially extended to be 
more proactive in its approach to tree planting. Developing a policy relating to 
tree replanting would also allow for the negotiation of budgetary support for 
the purchase of new trees. 

Action point

 Information to be provided for Members indicating the typical 
costs incurred by purchasing and planting trees, as part of or 
alongside the immediate climate change budgetary 
requirements expected at the next meeting

Recommendation

That the Council endorses the ‘Tree Guidelines for the Management of 
Trees within South Kesteven District’, with the provision that the 
document be an on-going development to be reviewed in one year.
 

16. Food Waste Trial update

Members were invited to consider the ‘SKDC Food Waste Trial Consultation 
Results’. The presentation was introduced by the Cabinet Member for 
Commercial and Operations, who explained that responses to the consultation 
had been positive. A very high percentage of respondents reported that they 
put their caddy out every week. This was attributed to an effective 
communications strategy regarding the scheme, as well as the development 
of an easy and efficient service. 

It was hoped that the Council would be able to secure funding from 
Lincolnshire County Council via the Lincolnshire Waste Partnership to role the 
scheme out further across the district. The challenge for the Council moving 
forward would be the additional cost of the food waste collection service in 
comparison to the financial renumeration for the disposal of the waste. It was 
noted that although a food waste collection service had high financial 
implications, the environmental benefits of the scheme supported the 
Council’s co-ordinated approach of its environmental and waste departments, 
which had already been praised by DEFRA. The Waste and Recycling team 
were currently trialling a new collection method for food waste, with the aim of 
increasing the efficiency of the service.

9



8

Members asked about the areas covered by the trial waste scheme. The route 
schedule had been developed to cover all demographics within the district, to 
give a representative view of how the scheme would be received by residents 
if rolled out further. Members of the Committee were keen to see the food 
waste initiative implemented throughout the district, including their ward areas 
where a number of constituents had expressed a desire to utilise the scheme. 
Further information outlining the costs for the collection and disposal of food 
waste was requested.

Action point

Members to receive further information detailing the costs involved in 
the collection and disposal of food waste in the new year

17. Work Programme

It was suggested that the Committee incorporate dates in the Work 
Programme for the last four points. The Chairman related that the Committee 
would be in more of a position to establish time scales for these items 
following its meeting in November.

18. Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent

None.

19. Close of Meeting

The meeting closed at 12.07pm.

10



Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee
26 November 2019

Report of: Councillor Dr Peter Moseley
Cabinet Member for Commercial 
and Operations

        

Position Statement on the Intentional Release of Sky 
(Chinese) Lanterns and Balloons
The purpose of this report is to consider the Councils position in relation to the intentional release 
of sky (Chinese) lanterns and balloons on council owned land. 

Report Author

Anne-Marie Coulthard, Head of Environmental

01476 406319

a.coulthard@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Competitiveness Non-Key All Wards

Reviewed by: Ian Yates, Assistant Director – Commercial and 
Operations 17 September 2019

Approved by: Gary Smith, Director – Commercial and Operations 3 October 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, Cabinet Member for 
Commercial and Operations 7 October 2019

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s)

1. Note the report and consider the establishment of a Position Statement setting out 
the Council’s approach to the intentional release of sky (Chinese) lanterns and 
balloons on Council owned land. 

2. Subject to feedback and agreement with recommendation 1, recommend to Cabinet 
that the draft South Kesteven District Council Position Statement on the Intentional 
Release of Sky (Chinese) Lanterns and Balloons be adopted.   

11

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 The intentional release of sky (Chinese) lanterns and balloons to the open environment have 

become a popular way of fundraising for charity or for marking occasions.  It is impossible 
to control where they land, and they can travel large distances before falling to the ground 
or into streams and rivers which may lead to the sea.   

1.2 Balloons and their string/ribbon attachments can a cause a choking or entanglement hazard 
for livestock and wildlife.  Lanterns pose similar threats from the metal frame and as they 
contain a naked flame, also pose an avoidable fire hazard to dry standing crops, stacks of 
hay or straw, forestry and buildings. This view has been supported by amongst others, the 
RSPCA, the National Farmers Union, the Civil Aviation Authority, the Marine Conservation 
Society and some Fire Services.

1.3 The Marine Conservation Society argues that the release of sky (Chinese) lanterns and 
balloons is an indirect form of littering or fly tipping and should be legislated as such.  The 
Government has previously indicated that it does not advocate a complete ban and it is 
unlikely that there will be any legislative changes in the near future. Therefore, raising 
awareness and community engagement should be seen as an approach to changing 
behaviour.

1.4 The extent of intentional releases in South Kesteven is unknown.  However, being a 
predominantly rural area, there may be greater risks to livestock, wildlife and crops than in 
more densely populated areas. In addition, the Council has demonstrated its commitment 
to improving the attractiveness of the district through the Big Clean and the debris will have 
a detrimental impact on the local environment.  Publishing a position statement would 
support this continued commitment.    

1.5 While a breach of a position statement would not be legally enforceable, if approved, it can 
be included in Council policies and agreements relating to the use of Council land e.g. parks 
and open spaces for public events etc.

1.6 To date, 84 UK local authorities have been recognised by the Marine Conservation Society 
as having a balloon and/or sky lantern release ban in place.

1.7 A potential draft position statement is at Appendix 1. 

2 Available Options Considered
2.1 The Council is not obliged to publish a position statement and can remain silent on the issue. 

2.2 The release of sky (Chinese) lanterns and balloons is not an illegal activity, however, there 
are risks associated with the resulting debris which presents a significant risk to animals, 
crops, property and the natural environment.  The Council could publish a position statement 
in relation to its own land.

3 Preferred Option
3.1 Publishing a position statement would show the Council’s continued commitment to 

improving the attractiveness of the district and tackling the detrimental impact of the debris 
resulting from the releases.   

4 Reasons for the Recommendation (s)
4.1 There is currently no UK legislation available to control this issue, therefore it is for the local 

authority to consider whether a position statement is necessary. 

12



5 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision
5.1 If a statement is adopted a communication campaign will be necessary to inform Town and 

Parish Councils, residents etc. of the position.  

6 Financial Implications 
6.1 There are no direct financial implications arising as a result of this report.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance

7 Legal and Governance Implications 
7.1 The policy statement would enable the Council to monitor the use of its parks and open 

spaces and to educate any members of the public who might wish to release such lanterns 
from Council land. However, it should be recognised that adopting the policy statement 
would not confer any enforcement rights on the Council but should be viewed as a longer 
term ambition to promote good practice and reduce the impacts referred to in the report. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Monitoring Officer

8 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
8.1 An equality impact assessment has been undertaken and is at Appendix 2.  This recognises 

that there is the potential for the statement to have an impact on the “race” and “religion or 
belief” equality groups as lanterns are used during some religious and cultural festivals.  

9 Risk and Mitigation
9.1 No significant risks have been identified as a result of this report. 

10 Community Safety Implications 
10.1 No significant community safety implications have been identified as a result of this report. 

11 Other Implications (where significant) 
11.1 None identified.

12 Background Papers
12.1 ADAS 2013, Sky Lanterns and Helium Balloons an Assessment of Impacts on Livestock 

and the Environment

13 Appendices
13.1 Appendix 1 - Draft South Kesteven Position Statement on the Intentional Release of Sky 

(Chinese) Lanterns and Balloons.

13.2 Appendix 2 – Stage 1 Equality Impact Assessment

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

TBCReport Timeline: 

Final Decision date (proposed) 21 January 2020

13

http://sciencesearch.defra.gov.uk/Default.aspx?Menu=Menu&Module=More&Location=None&Completed=0&ProjectID=18402
http://sciencesearch.defra.gov.uk/Default.aspx?Menu=Menu&Module=More&Location=None&Completed=0&ProjectID=18402


This page is intentionally left blank



Position Statement

The Intentional Release of Sky (Chinese) Lanterns and Balloons

1. The Council will not allow the intentional release of sky (Chinese) lanterns and balloons 
on its own land which is open to the public, including council owned parks or open spaces.  

2. The Council is committed to creating a clean and attractive environment across the district. 
Through taking this decision, the Council aims to raise awareness of the negative impacts 
of the intentional release of sky (Chinese) lanterns and balloons on the environment, 
wildlife and livestock.   It is hoped that publicising this statement will also lead to greater 
public awareness and a reduction in smaller scale private releases.

3. The intentional release of sky (Chinese) lanterns and balloons has grown in popularity.  
They are often released into the sky as part of festivals, commemorative events or for 
charity fundraising.   It is impossible to control where they will land, and they can travel 
over large distances before falling to the ground.

4. However well intentioned, it is recognised that there are a number of safety and 
environmental impacts associated with this activity.  There is growing recognition that the 
debris creates a risk to wildlife and livestock as well as being a source of litter on land, in 
watercourses and at sea and in the case of sky (Chinese) lanterns, an avoidable risk of 
fire and damage.  

5. The Council is committed to helping event organisers and fund raisers and will offer advice
on alternative ways to raise funds or commemorate in line with national initiatives such as 
the Marine Conservation Society’s ‘Don’t let go’ campaign.

6. This statement is intended to prohibit the deliberate release of sky lanterns and helium 
balloons at events on council owned land which is open to the public.   The Council 
recognises that there may be instances where single helium balloons will be accidentally 
released into the environment such as may happen at children’s parties.

7. This statement does not apply to hot air balloons, weather balloons or other balloons used 
for scientific purposes. 

Definitions

“Sky lanterns” or “Chinese lanterns” refers to a lantern made of paper or other thin material 
typically supported by a wire or bamboo frame and lifted by heat from a naked flame or any 
other heat source. This statement covers all sky lanterns whatever their construction.  

 “Balloon” refers to any inflatable flexible bag filled with gas, such as helium, hydrogen, nitrous 
oxide, oxygen or hot air made from materials such as rubber, latex, natural latex, paper, 
polychloroprene, foil, mylar or a nylon fabric. This includes all balloons whether or not 
biodegradable.

“Release” refers to the intentional act of releasing a balloon or Chinese/sky lantern into the 
general environment.   

15

Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Equality Impact
(Initial Analysis)

Intentional Release of Sky (Chinese) Lanterns and Balloons

Lead officer:
 Anne-Marie Coulthard
Assessors:
Anne-Marie Coulthard

Service Area:
Environmental

Neutral Assessor:
Carol Drury

Date of Meeting 

03/09/19

17

Appendix 2



2

1. Name and description of policy/service/function/strategy

If approved, this position statement would prohibit the intentional release of 
Sky (Chinese) Lanterns and balloons on council owned land which is open 
to the public e.g. parks and open spaces.

Is this a new or existing policy? New

2. Complete the table below, considering whether the proposed 
policy/service/function/strategy could have any potential positive,  or 
negative impacts on groups from any of the protected characteristics (or 
diversity strands) listed, using demographic data, user surveys, local 
consultations evaluation forms, comments and complaints etc.

Equality Group

Does this 
policy/service/function/
strategy have a positive 
or negative impact on 
any of the equality 
groups? 

Please state which for 
each group

Please describe why the impact is 
positive or negative.
If you consider this policy etc is not 
relevant to a specific characteristic 
please explain why  

Age Not applicable Not a determinant of this policy 

Disability Not applicable Not a determinant of this policy

Race Neutral/Negative The lighting, flying and floating of 
lanterns is cultural tradition with the 
Asian community.  These events are 
typically around the Chinese Mid-
Autumn Festival and Mid-Spring to 
mark the end of the Chinese New 
Year. The position statement would 
not prohibit their use (with permission) 
on Council land, only their release.

Gender 
Reassignment

  

Not applicable Not a determinant of this policy

Religion or 
Belief  

Neutral/Negative The lighting of lanterns is associated 
with several religious festivals and 
events including the lantern festival (a 
Buddhist holiday) and also celebrated 
in Chinese, Malaysian communities 
and the Festival of Lights during 

18



3

Diwali (predominantly Hindu).  The 
position statement would not prohibit 
their use (with permission) on Council 
land, only their release. 

Sex

  

Not applicable Not a determinant of this policy

Sexual 
Orientation

Not applicable Not a determinant of this policy

Pregnancy and 
Maternity

Not applicable Not a determinant of this policy

Marriage and 
Civil 
Partnership

Not applicable Not a determinant of this policy

Carers Not applicable Not a determinant of this policy

Other Groups 
(e.g. those from 
deprived (IMD*) 
communities; 
those from rural 
communities, 
those with an 
offending past)

*(IMD = Indices 
of multiple 
deprivation)

None identified 

General 
comments

This position statement effects all users of Council owned public 
open spaces equally.  However, there is the potential for it to have 
a negative impact on the use of sky lanterns at these locations 
during religious and cultural festivals.  
The statement does not apply to private land or council owned 
land which is not open to the public. 

19



4

3. What equality data/information did you use to inform the outcomes of 
the proposed policy/service/function/strategy? (Note any relevant 
consultation who took part and key findings)

The extent of the release of sky lanterns and balloons from Council owned 
public spaces is unknown. Requests have been very infrequent and, when 
received have been for the release of balloons.   The main negative impact 
relates to the cultural celebrations and during religious festivals 
predominantly associated with Buddhism and Hinduism. 

If there are any gaps in the consultation/monitoring data, how will this 
be addressed?

4. Outcomes of analysis and recommendations (please note you will be 
required to provide evidence to support the recommendations made): 
Please check one of the options.   

a) No major change needed: equality analysis has not identified any 
potential for discrimination or for negative impact and all 
opportunities to promote equality have been taken

If you have checked option a) you can now send this form to the Lead 
Officer and your Neutral Assessor for sign off

b) Adjust the proposal to remove barriers identified by equality 
analysis or to better promote equality. 

If you have checked option b) you will need to answer questions b.1 
and b.2 

c) Adverse impact but continue

If you have checked option c) you will need to answer questions c.1

d Stop and remove the policy/function/service/strategy as equality 
analysis has shown actual or potential unlawful

b.1 In brief, what changes are you planning to make to your proposed 
policy/service/function/strategy to minimise or eliminate the negative 
equality impacts?

20



5

b.2 Please provide details of whom you will consult on the proposed 
changes and if you do not plan to consult, please provide the rationale 
behind that decision.  

If you have checked option b) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis

c.1 Please provide an explanation in the box below that clearly sets out your 
justification for continuing with the proposed policy/function/service/ 
strategy.

If you have checked option c) you will need to complete a Stage 2 equality 
analysis. You should consider in stage 2 whether there are sufficient plans to 

reduce the negative impact and/or plans to monitor the actual impact.

Signed (Lead Officer):  Anne-Marie Coulthard
(Name and title) Head of Environmental

Date completed: 04/09/19 

Signed (Neutral Assessor): Carol Drury
(Name and title) Community Engagement and Policy Development Officer

Date signed off:    04/09/19

21



This page is intentionally left blank



Environment Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee
26 November 2019

Report of: Councillor Dr Peter Moseley
Cabinet Member for Commercial 
and Operations

        

Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 Update
The Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 was introduced to reduce metal theft by strengthening the 
regulation of the scrap metal industry through a new licensing regime. The purpose of this report is 
to provide the Committee with information regarding the licensing regime in South Kesteven and 
progress since the Act came into effect. 

Report Author

Anne-Marie Coulthard, Head of Environmental

01476 406319

a.coulthard@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Competitiveness Regulatory All Wards

Reviewed by: Ian Yates, Assistant Director – Commercial and 
Operations 5 November 2019

Approved by: Gary Smith, Strategic Director – Commercial and 
Operations 5 November 2019

Signed off by: Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, Cabinet Member for 
Commercial and Operations 6 November 2019

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s)

1. It is recommended that the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee note 
the content of the report. 

23

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 The Scrap Metal Dealers Act (“the Act”) was implemented in October 2013 in response to 

the upward trend in levels of metal theft. The Act made it a requirement for all scrap metal 
dealers to hold a licence, with the aim of making it more difficult for unscrupulous dealers to 
trade in stolen metal. Alongside this, other requirements were introduced including the 
banning of cash payments for scrap metal, improvements to record keeping requirements 
and requiring metal sellers to provide proof of identity at the point of sale. 

1.2 In 2017 the Home Office undertook a review of the effectiveness of the legislation which 
suggested that the increased regulation of the scrap metal industry had driven a reduction 
in offences over and above the effect which could be attributed to the fall in metal prices 
and other factors driving trends in acquisitive crime.  According to Office of National 
Statistics Property Crime Tables, 1220 metal theft offences were recorded by Lincolnshire 
Police in the year ending March 2013.  In the year ending March 2018 this stood at 327, a 
reduction of 72% across the county since the introduction of the Act.

1.3 The Act requires a scrap metal dealer to obtain a licence in order to carry on business as a 
scrap metal dealer. There are two types of licence; a site licence and a mobile collector 
licence. The licence authorises the licensee to carry on business as a scrap metal dealer at 
the sites listed in it (in the case of a site licence) or within the local authority area (in the 
case of a mobile collector’s licence). Licences must be displayed at the premises or in the 
vehicle. The local authority is permitted to charge a fee for the issue of a licence. The fee is 
set on a full cost recovery basis (enforcement costs incurred in acting against unlicensed 
dealers cannot be recovered through the fee).  Licences are valid for 3 years. 

1.4 Before licences are granted or renewed, scrap metal dealers are “assessed for suitability” 
having regard to any relevant information.  This includes whether relevant enforcement 
action has been taken against the applicant or whether he or she has been convicted of a 
relevant offence.  The application process includes a Basic Disclosure and Barring Service 
check and consultation with the Police, Environment Agency and other local authorities 
where relevant.  Details are entered on the public register of licensed scrap metal dealers 
which is held by the Environment Agency and available online.

1.5 In South Kesteven there are currently 9 licensed sites and 4 licensed mobile collectors.

1.6 Enforcement activity can be undertaken by both the Police and Local Authority.  
Environmental Health Officers have undertaken joint visits to all sites with the Police and a 
focused day of action took place in 2014 stopping vehicles entering sites and checking 
licences. 

1.7 Further information, including a link to the Environment Agency public register of licenced 
scrap metal dealers is available on the Council’s website.  Any concerns about potential 
unlicensed dealers, or questions about this activity, should be referred to the Environmental 
Protection Team in Environmental Health.

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny
2.1 This report is for information only.  No consultation has been undertaken. 

3 Available Options Considered
3.1 The licensing of scrap metal dealers is a statutory function.  

24



4 Preferred Option
4.1 The Committee is asked to note the content of the report. 

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s)
5.1 This report is for information only.

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision
6.1 No further steps are considered necessary at this time.   Information relating to the 

licensing of scrap metal dealers in available on the Council’s website. 

7 Financial Implications 
7.1 The cost to the Council of licensing scrap metal dealers is recovered through the licence 

fee. This is set on a full costs recovery basis and detailed in the Council’s approved fees 
and charges. The cost of any enforcement activity is currently met from existing budgets. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Director of Finance

8 Legal and Governance Implications 
8.1 The Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 places duties on the local authority to licence scrap metal 

dealers in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Monitoring Officer 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
9.1 No equality or safeguarding implications have been identified. 

10 Risk and Mitigation
10.1 No significant risks have been identified. 

11 Community Safety Implications 
11.1 The licensing of scrap metal dealers makes a positive contribution in addressing metal theft 

by removing the opportunities for criminals to dispose of stolen metal through scrap metal 
sites. 

12 Other Implications (where significant) 
12.1 No other significant implications have been identified. 

13 Background Papers
13.1 Office for National Statistics, Property Crime Tables

13.2 Home Office, Review of the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 (December 2017)

25

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/datasets/focusonpropertycrimeappendixtables
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/review-of-the-scrap-metal-dealers-act-2013


This page is intentionally left blank



18/11/19

1

Environment Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee: 
Grounds Maintenance 
Update

26/11/19
Gary Smith, Strategic Director –
Commercial & Operations

Grounds Maintenance Recap

• SKDC currently spends circa £950k a year on grounds maintenance:

– Housing Revenue Account

– Special Expense Areas

– General Fund

• Glendale Grounds Management Ltd was SKDC’s provider until 28/2/19

• Environment SK Ltd took over as SKDC’s provider on the 1/3/19

• Summary of governance remit distinction:

– Environment OSC: Grounds maintenance requirements, quality & 
service outcomes

– Companies Committee: Environment SK performance as a   
company & shareholder function

27

Agenda Item 9



18/11/19

2

Grounds Maintenance Looking Forward

• Existing grounds maintenance specification:

– Was rolled over from the previous (Glendale) contractor

– Needs refreshing, simplifying & streamlining for 2020/21

• Opportunities to adjust requirements to complement other 
initiatives (see next slide)

• Opportunities for budget savings/reductions, eg:

– Rationalise the volume &/or specification level of works of least 
benefit to the community

– Stop grounds maintenance on sites that are not SKDC’s responsibility

– Potential community asset transfers to parish councils, community 
bodies & charities

• Separately, there may be opportunities to explore whether              
the SEA could provide additional Lincolnshire County             
Council highway verge cuts in Grantham

Opportunities to Complement Other Related Initiatives

• SKDC declared a ‘climate emergency’ on the 26/9/19

• Cabinet endorsed the ‘Local Government Charter for Trees, Woods & 
People: Principles’ on the 12/11/19, includes:

– Sustain landscapes rich in wildlife (principle 1)

– Plant for the future (principle 2)

– Plan greener local landscapes (principle 6)

– Combat the threats to our habitats (principle 9)

• Some example opportunities:

– Policy to replace all trees felled for essential maintenance (eg diseased)

– Proactive tree planting

– ‘Rewilding’, flower meadows & nature areas

– Creating habitats, eg leaving tree stumps & trunks

28



18/11/19

3

Recommendations

It is recommended that:

1. Environment OSC note this grounds maintenance update.

2. Environment OSC give any views & comments to inform the 
proposed grounds maintenance changes.

29



This page is intentionally left blank



18/11/19

1

Environment Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee: Waste 
Management Performance 
Indicators

26/11/19
Gary Smith, Strategic Director –
Commercial & Operations

Context

• The incoming Chairman of the Environment OSC is keen to introduce 
some high-level performance indicators to the Environment OSC 
forward programme & has been liaising with The Cabinet Member for 
Commercial and Operations

• Another committee member had previously asked for performance 
indicators to be considered by Environment OSC

• Finance, Economic Development & Corporate Services OSC 
recommended on the 5/9/19:

– That the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee consider the percentage of 

household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting, including the level of 

contamination of silver bins to support the work being undertaken by Lincolnshire 

County Council and within the Council’s own service area for Waste and Recycling

• SKDC’s Performance Leads have been developing some       
performance dashboards & engaging Members around the            
shape & focus of these (Member workshop held 7/10/19)

31

Agenda Item 14



18/11/19

2

Waste Management Background

• Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy (JMWMS) for 
Lincolnshire was developed by the Lincolnshire Waste Partnership

• Lincolnshire Waste Partnership (LWP) brings together the public 
bodies within Lincolnshire responsible for collection & disposal of waste:
– Seven Waste Collection Authorities (WCA’s) – Boston Borough Council, City of 

Lincoln Council, East Lindsey District Council, North Kesteven District Council, 
South Holland District Council, South Kesteven District Council & West Lindsey 
District Council

– One Waste Disposal Authority (WDA) – Lincolnshire County Council
– One Waste Regulatory Authority – The Environment Agency

• Environment OSC recommended to Cabinet the JMWMS on the 
20/11/18

• Cabinet approved the JMWMS on the 20/12/18

Five-Step Hierarchy of Waste Management

32



18/11/19

3

Encouraging & Educating

Lincolnshire Waste Collection & Waste Disposal

33



18/11/19

4

Percentage of Domestic Waste Recycled, Reused or Sent for 
Composting – Explained

• The performance indicator measures: Proportion of waste diverted 
from landfill/incineration

• SKDC & LWP objective: To contribute to the UK recycling targets of 
50% by 2020 & 55% by 2025 (objective 5 of the JMWMS)

• SKDC (WCA) collects the refuse

• LCC (WDA) manages & pays for all costs for disposal/recycling 
(inc any costs linked to contamination)

• LWP considers options to further promote reuse, recycling, 
composting & avoiding contamination:

– Latest initiative in 2018 “no thanks” stickers for silver bin 
(nappies/sanitary products, food waste & batteries/electrical items)

• SKDC can take enforcement action against households who 
contaminate their recycling – last resort

Percentage of Domestic Waste Recycled, Reused or Sent for 
Composting – Performance (Apr 2017-Sep 2019) 

34



18/11/19

5

Wider Performance Indicators

• Wider Street Scene performance indicators:

– Number of missed bins per 100,000

– Number of green bins collected

– Residual household waste per household

– Number of fly tipping incidents received

– Percentage of streets that meet Clean Streets standard

• Other info:

– Number of bins rejected because of contamination

– Climate change & carbon emissions

– Air quality monitoring (Grantham)

• Environmental Health performance indicators

Recommendations

It is recommended that:

1. Environment OSC ask the Performance Leads to develop a 
performance dashboard of environment performance indicators.

2. Environment OSC receive performance indicator/dashboard 
updates up to biannually.

35



This page is intentionally left blank



Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2019/20
DRAFT Work Programme
Item Current Issues/Status Date Outcome sought

Food Waste Trial
Verbal update - from the Cabinet Member for Commercial and 
Operations – how the pilot has progressed, how it has been 
received, success, feedback etc.

18 June 
2019

To update Committee on costs and 
benefits and comment on the pilot.

National Waste 
Strategy

Overview of response to last consultation.  Introduction to future 
consultation opportunities. Future consultations expected in 
2019/20.

18 June 
2019

To update Committee on 
consultations and comment on the 
strategy.

Approach to Climate 
Change Initial discussion and scoping. 18 June 

2019

Suggestions for reducing carbon 
emissions – establish a Climate 
Change Workshop.

Approach to Climate 
Change

Informal workshop held 30 July – Guest speaker Mark Davies. 
Update on informal workshop on climate change.

17 
September 
2019

Committee to consider updates / 
suggestions from workshop.

Tree Guidelines
To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Commercial 
and Operations on the creation of a coherent model to guide 
how the Council deals with trees.

17 
September 
2019

Make suggestions to Cabinet for 
amendments to Tree Guidelines, if 
appropriate. Suggest that Council 
adopts the Charter for Trees.

Food Waste Trial Update to be provided on the results from residents’ survey.
17 
September 
2019 

Feedback and suggestions from 
Committee Members, considering 
the results from the survey.

Gambling Act 
Statement of 
Principals

Consultation period ended beginning of September 2019.
Environment OSC consider responses to consultation and 
recommends revised statement to Cabinet.

17 
September 
2019

Council to adopt revised Policy on 28 
November 

Grounds 
Maintenance 

Members to receive an update on the commissioned service, its 
performance and objectives.

26 
November 
2019

To make any suggestions to Cabinet 
on the service or contract, if 
appropriate.

Textile recycling Verbal update / discussion on current provision of and demand 
for textile recycling / dumping / collection across SKDC.

26 
November 
2019

To make recommendations to 
Cabinet for actions relating to textile 
recycling.

Intentional release of 
balloons and sky 
lanterns

A Council position statement has been requested on intentional 
balloon and sky lantern releases. 

26 
November 
2019

To offer comments and suggestions 
for Cabinet in compiling an SKDC 
position statement

37

A
genda Item

 15



Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2019/20
DRAFT Work Programme
Item Current Issues/Status Date Outcome sought

WPD Local 
Investment 
Workshop feedback

Discussion item – Sharing of slides publicly from Western Power 
Distribution workshop.

26 
November 
2019

Comments and feedback from 
Committee on Western Power 
Distribution’s position, and to 
nominate a Councillor to attend 
workshops in future.

Scrap metal Dealers Licensing objectives, statutory duties.
26 
November 
2019

Consider licensing objectives and 
statutory duties relating to scrap 
metal dealers.

Climate Change Feedback from Climate Change Workshop and Climate Action 
Task & Finish Group.

26 
November 
2019

To consider outcomes from the 
workshop and task and finish group, 
and make recommendations to 
Cabinet as necessary.

Hackney Carriage & 
Private Hire 
Licensing Policy

To seek volunteers for a policy development workshop.
26 
November 
2019

To seek volunteers for a joint Policy 
Development Workshop with the 
Licensing Committee.

Performance 
Indicators

To introduce a new item for future meetings of the Committee, 
considering performance indicators relating to the remit of the 
Committee (frequency tbc)

26 
November 
2019

Introduction for future reference

Hackney Carriage & 
Private Hire 
Licensing Policy

Review of existing policy and discussions on outcome of 
January 2020 Policy Development Workshop. 

February 
2020

Revised policy to be considered by 
Cabinet 2020.

Single Use Plastic 
Aspirations Discussion item. February 

2020

Consider the Council’s role in 
reducing single use plastics, making 
recommendations to Cabinet as 
necessary.

Cycling
Figures on take up of SKDC Cycle to Work Scheme, and 
number of people who cycle to work at SKDC.
(confirm requirements from committee)

TBC TBC

Biodiversity (confirm requirements from committee) TBC TBC

38



19/20 Site Visits to be Arranged:
Windrow composting facility – Mid UK, Honeypot Lane, Colsterworth
Materials Recycling Facility (MRF) – Mid UK, Caythorpe 

Potential Future Site Visits (TBC)
Energy from Waste Facility (EfW) – North Hykeham
Exemplar Eco House
EnvironmentSK depot (is there a publicly accessible space to hold a meeting?)
Trial of AI technology in relation to Council owned street lamps

39



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Action Notes from the meeting held on 17 September 2019
	7 Position Statement on the Intentional Release of Sky (Chinese) Lanterns and Balloons
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	8 Scrap metal dealers
	9 Grounds Maintenance Update
	14 Performance Indicators
	15 Work programme

